

E-mail: comsec@teignbridge.gov.uk

17 July 2023

FULL COUNCIL

A meeting of the Full Council will be held on Tuesday, 25th July, 2023 in the Council Chamber, Forde House, Brunel Road, Newton Abbot, TQ12 4XX at 10.00 am

PHIL SHEARS Managing Director

Membership:

Councillors Atkins, Bradford, Bullivant, Buscombe, Clarance (Chair), D Cox (Vice-Chair), H Cox, Daws, Dawson, Farrand-Rogers, Foden, Gearon, Goodman-Bradbury, Hall, Hayes, Henderson, Hook, Jackman, James, Jeffries, Keeling, Lake, MacGregor, Morgan, Mullone, Nutley, Nuttall, Palethorpe, C Parker, P Parker, Parrott, Peart, Purser, Radford, Rogers, Rollason, Ryan, Sanders, Smith, Steemson, Swain, G Taylor, J Taylor, Thorne, Webster, Williams and Wrigley

Please Note:The public can view the live streaming of the meeting at <u>Teignbridge</u> <u>District Council Webcasting (public-i.tv)</u> with the exception where there are confidential or exempt items, which may need to be considered in the absence of the press and public.

AGENDA

<u>Part I</u>

1. Apologies for absence

2. Minutes

To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the previous Council meeting.

3. Announcements (if any)

(Pages 5 - 12)

Announcements only from the Chair of Council, Leader, Members of the Executive or the Managing Director.

In accordance with the constitution the Managing Director had been informed by the Liberal Democrat Group Leader Cllr Wrigley that Cllr Nuttall replaced Cllr D Cox on Planning Committee although he will remain a substitute and Cllr D Cox replaced Cllr Swain on Standards Committee, Cllr Sanders replaced Cllr Swain on Overview & Scrutiny Committee (1), Cllr Buscombe replaced Cllr C Parker on Overview & Scrutiny Committee (1) and Cllr Sanders replaced Cllr Swain on Overview & Scrutiny Committee (2).

The South Devon Alliance Group Leader Cllr Daws advised that Cllr J Taylor replaced Cllr Gearon on Overview and Scrutiny Committee (1) and Cllr Daws replaced Cllr J Taylor on Audit Scrutiny Committee.

4. Declarations of interest (if any)

5. Public Questions (if any)

Members of the public may ask questions. A maximum period of 15 minutes will be allowed with a maximum period of three minutes per questioner.

6.	Broadmeadow Sports Centre Refurbishment and Decarbonisation Project	(Pages 13 - 36)
7.	Revision of the Appendix of the Council's Code of Conduct for members	(Pages 37 - 40)
8.	Outside Bodies	(Pages 41 - 46)

9. Councillor Questions (if any)

Members of the Council may ask questions of the Council subject to procedural rules.

10. Notices of Motion

Notice of Motion's shall be referred to the appropriate Committee meeting. The mover of the motion can outline the proposal and then it will stand adjourned. The motion may be debated to assist debate later if agreed by two-thirds of Council Members.

Notice of Motion 1

The following motion on protection of Rail Ticket Offices has been presented by Deputy Leader & Executive Member for Corporate Services and supported by the Leader, Cllr Nutley, Cllr G Taylor, Cllr Hayes, Cllr Henderson, Cllr Dawson, Cllr Sanders, Cllr C Parker, Cllr Nuttall, Cllr Hook, Cllr Parrott, Cllr Palethorpe and Cllr Farrand-Rogers

CALL TO PROTECT RAIL TICKET OFFICES ACROSS DEVON

Council notes with concern the announcement by the Rail Delivery Group that train

companies are pressing ahead with plans to close up to 1000 rail ticket offices across England over the next 3 years.

Council believes that ticket offices provide a vital service to residents in Teignbridge. Having a clearly sign-posted place in the station for people with ticket enquiries provides certainty and confidence for customers who may struggle to otherwise locate station staff.

Not all residents are able to use station ticket machines or have the means to book a ticket in advance. Complicated journeys involving connections are likely to require human assistance to ensure customers purchase the most appropriate and cheapest tickets, and do not incur penalties or pay more than necessary for their journey.

Council is concerned the closure of ticket offices will disproportionately affect elderly and disabled residents in Teignbridge – as well as those with poor literacy and IT skills.

Council notes the statistics from Age UK that 3 million elderly people in the UK do not have access to the internet, and statistics from the Royal National Institute for Blind People that only 3% of those with partial or full sight loss feel able to use ticket machines.

Council is also concerned about the possible implications for current station staff and the concerns that have been raised over possible staff redundancies – given that there will be no regulations for minimum staffing levels at stations and on platforms.

Council therefore resolves to:

- Instruct the Managing Director to write to Mark Harper MP Secretary of State for Transport, and the Chief Executive of the Rail Delivery Group, expressing Council's opposition to the possible closure of staffed rail ticket offices – and in particular the offices across the Teignbridge District Council area
- Instruct the Managing Director to write to the rail operator(s) running local ticket offices in Teignbridge expressing the Council's opposition to any plans to close the staffed ticket office in the district council area.
- Refer this issue to Scrutiny with the recommendation that representatives from the relevant rail operator(s) are invited to attend a Scrutiny Meeting at the earliest possible point to discuss future plans for ticket offices and staffing in Teignbridge.

Notice of Motion 2

The following motion on the Future High Street Fund Delegation has been presented by the Leader and supported by Cllr Keeling, Cllr G Taylor, Cllr Hayes, Cllr Henderson, Cllr Nutley, Cllr Sanders, Cllr C Parker, Cllr Nuttall, Cllr Parrott and Cllr Palethorpe.

The Future High Street Fund consists of four projects: Queen Street, National Cycle Route 2 improvements, Cinema and Market Hall.

While the Queen Street and the Cycle route improvement projects are progressing through Devon County, progress to date on the Market Hall regeneration and the cinema project has missed significant milestones from the project plans published 17th November 2022.

These projects have a deadline for spending the FHSF money of March 2024.

These projects also include a substantial amount of TDC capital funding.

Progress on the Market Hall regeneration and the Cinema has been disappointingly slow for a variety of reasons. It is likely that changes to these projects may be required due to cost inflation and economic changes since 2019 and the delays since November 2022.

In previous meetings of Teignbridge District Council delegation was given to proceed with the work around the Market Hall, the Alexandra Theatre building and the new cinema project without any specified milestones or checkpoints to come back for further authority to proceed.

The council is concerned that the projects are progressing without detailed oversight or co-development and co-delivery. The Cinema has yet to obtain planning permission after nearly four years of the project. The Market Hall programme has missed many milestones specified in the November 17th project plan.

It is proposed that the council rescind all delegation of authority for the Future High Street Fund projects excluding Queen St and the Cycle route improvements.

This delegated authority is to be replaced with staged delegations based on the project plans. Milestones achieved or missed and permission to proceed to a next milestone to be overseen by the Executive Committee and reported back to full council.

Milestones (or checkpoints) in a project are key decision points, such as interior design (outline or detailed), instructions or briefs to external parties, submission of planning requests, agreement with any external agency, Government or similar.

It is not the intention to stop the work, but to deliver the projects in a timely manner.

Notice of Motion 3

The following motion on a Single Overview and Scrutiny Committee has been presented by the Leader and supported by the Cllr Keeling, Cllr G Taylor, Cllr Hayes, Cllr Henderson, Cllr Nutley, Cllr Sanders, Cllr C Parker Cllr Nuttall, Cllr Parrott and Cllr Palethorpe.

It is proposed that the council revert from the two Overview and Scrutiny committees (1&2) back to having a single Overview and Scrutiny committee that covers all areas of the council's business.

The change should be more efficient in terms of staff time and resources, with one workplan, one set of agendas and minutes. And thus save money.

This to be referred to the procedures committee for details.

If you would like this information in another format, please telephone 01626 361101 or e-mail <u>info@teignbridge.gov.uk</u>